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CRIME VICTIMS ADVOCACY PROGRAM 

/ Host Organization Request for Proposal
Question and Answers Frequently Asked Questions 

This document contains all incoming questions from potential subrecipient host organizations 
during the Request for Proposals (RFP) preparation and response for the Crime Victims 
Advocacy Program (CVAP). This information will be updated on a weekly basis until the 
question submission deadline of March 8, 2023, 5:00 p.m. ET.   

Can a Host Organization submit multiple applications based on different 
programs we'd like to have a Fellow in, or do we need to limit it to one 
application per organization.  If there can be multiple applications made, is 
there any restriction on granting a single host organization more than one 
Fellowship? 

Yes, each host organization can submit multiple applications based on different 

programs. There is no limit on the number of Fellows each applicant proposes. 

However, Equal Justice Works will consider applicants' capacity and prior experience, 

their proposals' quality, competitiveness and intended outcomes to maximize program 

efficiency and impact.  

We currently have an application pending as a host with a student who applied 
for the Design Your Own Fellowship. Would we still be able to apply to be a CVAP 
host? 

Previous or current/pending applications by a host organization to Equal Justice Works do not 

limit their ability to submit a proposal for the CVAP Request for Proposals. Each proposal will be 

reviewed separately and in-line with each solicitation.  

On page 8, you mention Student Fellow options. Will these Student Fellows be 

suggested in addition to a Fellow? Or will they also be the Fellow?  

Student Fellows (current law students) are in addition to a legal Fellow. Equal Justice 

Works will help recruit Student Fellows and share applicant resumes with each Host 

Organization. The Student Fellow will work with the Fellows in the host organizations 

during the summer of 2024.   

Page 7 outlines compensation as such: "the subaward includes contribution 

payment of up to $60,000 per Fellow/per Year (12 months) with a 3% point 

increase effective beginning of the 13th month of the Fellow’s term." Does this 
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mean that the 3% raise in the 13th month has to be contained within the 

maximum $60,000 per year, or is this a raise on top of the allowable $60,000 

annually? (Essentially, if we were to pay a fellow $60,000 in 2023, would it then 

be allowable to pay them $61,800 in 2024?) 

Equal Justice Works’ approved budget for the subaward will provide funding for the 

three percent increase on the $60,000 Fellow’s salary. The 3% raise will increase the 

maximum reimbursement to the Host Organization from $60,000 (per year) to $61,800 

(per year) starting on the 13th month of the Fellowship. This increase will remain until 

the 24th month or the end of the Fellowship. 

The RFP outlines that Fellows should be paid on a scale that is equivalent to 

similar positions at the organization. If our pay scale for salary and benefits for 

a new attorney exceeds the allowable $60,000/annually, would it be allowable to 

have a portion of this Fellow's FTE attributed to another of our funding sources, 

as long as we make this clear in the narrative and the budget? (For example, 70% 

of the Fellow funded on EJW CVAP, 30% to our VOCA grant?) 

Yes, it is allowable to make up the difference in a Fellow’s full-time equivalent (FTE) 

with another funding source. However, you cannot contribute to the difference using 

other federal funding. This means that you will not be able to supplant the missing 

30% with your VOCA grant, as suggested in your example. You could supplement it 

with funding from a foundation or other funding sources such as endowment or 

organization’s operation funds.    

What is the frequency with which you anticipate data reporting? (Monthly, 

quarterly, etc.) 

Narrative reports, which contain qualitative and quantitative data, are expected to 

be submitted quarterly. Financial reports, which contain lists of all expenses and 

proof of payments, are due at the end of every month with reimbursement requests. 

Can we start working on the application using the forms on your website, or do 

we need to receive permission or instructions before submitting an application? 

Yes, you start on the application using the forms on our website. You may also submit 

your application earlier than the March 8th deadline should it be completed 

beforehand. 

Do Fellows have to provide both criminal and civil services? 

Fellows provide civil services.  
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Is there a limit to how many legal interns an agency can request funding for in 

their grant budget? Would we be able to seek funding for more than one? 

CVAP Fellows are not interns and are to be viewed as full-time, attorney-level staff 
members. It is possible to have more than one CVAP Fellow depending on whether 
your organization successfully requested and can support two or more. Should your 
organization be chosen to host Fellows, you will receive funding and recruitment 
support for Student Fellows. These Student Fellows will be paired with CVAP Fellows 
and will assist them in their projects during the summer of 2024. There will be one 
Student Fellow per CVAP Fellow at your organization. In this way, you could have 
more than one Student Fellow in the summer of 2024.  

I noticed on the RFP that it instructs applicants to apply via a portal, and on the 

website, it says via email to this address. I was hoping to get some clarity as to 

which process is the correct one, and if via email, if there is any guidance on 

what the specified narrative should include or how long it should be?  

Proposals are to be submitted via the portal on the website at the link provided in the 

RFP under 3.B. Submission Method or this link 

https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/become-a-host-organization/crime-victims-

advocacy-program/cvap-host-organization-application/ 

Our program provides immigration legal services both directly, and through 

matching individuals for pro bono representation. We encounter a lot of 

individuals in need of immigration legal services. It looks like in the RFP, the 

Fellow is able to provide legal services to help crime victims, but it indicates 

that while immigration-related assistance is possible, it cannot be the sole focus 

of the Fellows' work. Are we still eligible for this Fellowship due to our focus on 

immigration? 

The Equal Justice Works’ Crime Victims Advocacy Program (CVAP) Fellowship cannot 

be primarily focused on immigration. According to Section 1. F (Scope of Work) 

immigration related services can be rendered under this program; yet immigration 

law should not be the primary or exclusive practice area for the Fellows. However, 

the Fellowship can focus on victims of crimes who are immigrants. Please refer to the 

RFP document for further details. 

We submitted a Letter of Intent survey to apply for the Crime Victim Fellowship 
and have not received any further information. Where can we find a link to the 
proposal information? 

https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/become-a-host-organization/crime-victims-advocacy-program/cvap-host-organization-application/
https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/become-a-host-organization/crime-victims-advocacy-program/cvap-host-organization-application/
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If you submitted an Intent to Apply survey response, it was recorded in our system 

and helped us understand the volume of possible proposals from host organization. 

The link to the RFP can be found on our website and is pasted here: 

https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/become-a-host-organization/crime-victims-

advocacy-program/  

We missed the deadline to respond to the Intent to Apply survey, will we be 

eligible to submit a proposal?  

Organizations may choose to submit a proposal even if they missed the deadline for 

responding to the Intent to Apply survey. The Intent to Apply survey was optional. 

There does not seem to be a place to provide a narrative explanation for the 

Other Support Costs in the Budget Template. Do you not want a narrative on this 

piece? 

Please use the rows in column “I” to write your budget narratives corresponding to 

each budget line item. We appreciate the feedback on the simplicity of our budget 

template. 

I am the current ED for my very small LSC funded program. I (re)joined the staff 
in 2007 and became Deputy in 2013 and ED on January 1, 2019. Based on our 
Organization chart, I am the only staff person in Executive Leadership. Would it 
be correct to answer that I have been established for longer than 5 years?   

If the roles and responsibilities of the Executive Director and Deputy Executive 

Directors are the same and both positions are in the Executive Leadership, then it will 

be acceptable to maintain that you have been established for longer than 5 years.  

We have an accounting manual with a written procurement system. LSC 

specifically approved it. It has been included with our other state and federal 

grant applications - although not explicitly "approved." Is it correct to state that 

it was "approved" by a state or federal agency? 

No. Please note in the comment section that your manual has been uniformly used 

across all your federal and state grants.  

We have not negotiated an indirect rate but use the 10% de minimis rate on our 

direct federal grant (DHHS ANA), as well as pass through grants (CSBG) and when 

we are subgrantees (DOJ BJA TCCLA & AmeriCorps!. Is it correct to answer that 

https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/become-a-host-organization/crime-victims-advocacy-program/
https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/become-a-host-organization/crime-victims-advocacy-program/
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we have a simple rate agreement as the federal government has accepted us 

using the de minimis rate? 

No. You do not appear to have a Negotiated Indirect Rate Agreement (NICRA).  

Instead, your organization  uses the 10% de minimis rate in the absence of a NICRA. 

We use Sage/Peachtree for accounting and QuickBooks on-line for payroll. Is it 

correct to answer that they have been approved by a state or federal agency? No 

one has ever objected to us using them. 

No. Regardless of the approval, the use of an accounting system is considered 

sufficient in determining compliance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP). Approval of an internal control system and accounting system by a 

State or Federal Agency audit indicates a different level of history and experience 

managing federal awards. This question helps us determine the level of support an 

organization may need from Equal Justice Works in case they are awarded a subgrant. 

We are an LSC funded program and have had an on-site visit within the past year 

(LSC OCE). Do you consider LSC to be a Pass-through Entity for the purposes of 

this question? (We will be receiving a visit with our current federal grant (DHHS 

ANA) later this year and have had on-site visits by the state DHHS on our pass 

through grant (CSBG) a few years back. 

Organizations that have been awarded grants, cooperative agreements and contracts 

directly by a Federal Agency, and who may pass federal funds on Subrecipients are 

considered Pass-through Entities. LSC is not a Federal Agency, but an independent 

nonprofit.  

Can pro bono coordination be included in the Fellowship scope of work? 

Pro bono coordination may be included in the Fellowship scope of work. For example, 

Fellows may assist with recruitment, training and managing pro bono attorneys.  

The RFP says that immigration law can't be the primary focus. Does this mean 

not more than 50% of the Fellow's time?   

In accordance with Section F. Scope of Work of the RFP, the attorney Fellows will 

primarily provide civil legal assistance and legal assistance with rights enforcement 

for victims in underserved, BIPOC communities and increase the capacity for services 

available to those victims through direct legal services, and when appropriate, 

outreach, education, and partnership-building activities. While immigration related 
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services can be rendered under this program, immigration law should not be the 

primary or exclusive practice area for the Fellows. Less than 50% of the Fellows’ time 

is appropriate.  

Would economic advocacy that supports self-sufficiency of victims of crime, such 

as support starting a business, working as a contactor, be considered within the 

scope?  

While economic advocacy is a necessary component of supporting victims of crime, it 

is not a component of this fellowship. However, Fellows could refer victims of crime 

to outside organizations and programs that offer economic advocacy supports. 

They'd like to know if their project proposal can include an element of vacatur 

work. They acknowledge that it's work done in the criminal system, but that it 

also intersects with civil legal assistance.   

The project proposals can include an element of vacatur work, especially if the 

offense arouse as a result of being a victim of trafficking. 

Do Fellows need to be law grads or new to the organization or can they be more 
experienced?   

Per the Sample Fellow Job Description we posted, Fellows should be licensed to 
practice law and possess experience in the subject area of the work proposed by the 
host org. 

In our estimation of gross revenues of federal awards, do we include pass-
through federal funding? E.g., VOCA funding for which we are contracted with a 
state agency? Or should this percentage only include direct grants from federal 
agencies?

It should only include direct grants from federal agencies. 

Our organization receives Contracts, Grants, and Grants with Special Conditions 
(e.g., "Spend Fund 1 by [date]".). How would we answer "What type of federal 
funding does the organization receive"? Would we add all of the points?   

Yes, you should add all of the points of federal funding that you receive. If your 
organization receives federal contracts, federal grants, and federal grants with 
special conditions, then you should list these types in your answer. 

https://www.equaljusticeworks.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/9.-Sample-Fellow-Position-Description-vFinal.pdf
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Our organization provides a $5,000 stipend to law clerks and we are concerned 
about the equity implications of providing a $6,000 stipend for one law clerk. 
Can we request only $5,000 for a law clerk?   

The budget caps indicate the maximum amount Equal Justice Works may contribute. 
Applicants may honor their pay scale to adjust their budget requests accordingly.

***Note: The CVAP RFP has been revised since it was published. The accurate amount 

of funding available to the Law Student interns over the summer of 2024 is $6,000 

per student. 


